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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Magnolia Place is a large, imposing brick mansion of unusual configura-

tion resulting from the innovative fashion in which the popular temple form
was employed to unite an earlier Federal house with a Greek Revival enlarge-
ment. The Federal block, facing east, is a two-story structure of brick
laid in Flemish bond, resting on a low foundation of stons. It is five bayg
wide and two deep and probably had a gable roof running parallel to the
facade. An exterior chimney rises at each end. Originally all the openingg
of the main facade were surmounted by flat stone arches, but the central
entrance and some of the windows have been bricked up, probably at about
the time of the Greek Revival addition. The early windows contain nine-
over-nine sash at the first level and six~over-nine at the second.

The Greek Revival section, also of brick laid primarily in Flemish
bond, is one bay deep and emxtends two large bays west from the rear of the
first house. Its completion more than doubled the size of the building and
changed its orientation from east-west to north-south. Both sections are
covered by a common gable roof, its ridge running east-west. The angle
between the old and new sections is filled by a long full~height porch on
the north (now front) side of the newer section, which is engaged under the
roof. This treatment makes a rectangular temple form out of what would
otherwise be an L-shaped composition. Supporting the roof over the porch
are three very large, fluted unacademic Doric columns. Heavy masonry
pilasters, painted white, define the corners of both sections of the struc-
ture and separate the bays of the Greek Revival section, repeating the scale
and rhythm of the porch columns. They support a wide, plain frieze and
molded cornice that carries bsneath ths pediments of east and west ends.
The tympana are brick in common bond. The rather deep overhang of the roof
is accented by a simple, inverted wave-pattern sawn bargeboard that continugs
along the sides as well. The openings of the Greek Revival section have
symmetrically molded frames with corner blocks; windows contain twelve-over-
twelve sash, with striking diminution of fenestration. The large double
doors with transoms and sidelights occur:in both bays on the north side,
serving the porch; a smaller but similarly treated entrance in the northeast
bay of the older section also opens on to the porch. The second-level
windows above these doorways are triple ones. A brick kitchen is connected
to the south side of the Federal block by a breezeway.

The first floor of the Federal portion retains some of its simple
three-part molded architraves but has no original mantels. Each second-
floor room has an interesting three-part Federal mantel with fluted pilasterns
and sunbursts on the center tablet and end blocks. The two first-floor
rooms of the Greek Revival portion (one a dining room and the other a parlor
have handsoms, Asher Benjamin-style mantels, each with a fluted architrave
with corner blocks, behind fluted pilasters supporting a plain frieze. A
graceful Federal stair, possibly moved from the older portion of the house,
rises over the parlor mantel from north to south, giving the curious
arrangement of having a working fireplace beneath the stair. (A central

_chimney serves this block of the house.) Throughout the'Greek Revival
section are symmetrically molded architraves with corner blocks.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Magnolia Place is an impressive Greek Revival temple form house
incorporating in unusual fashion an earlier Federal structure. It is one
of an important group of antebellum mansions in the Catawba River valley
and is of particular local historical significance because of its connec-
tion with the notable Avery and Walton families.

For forty years before the Civil War, there flourished along the
Catawba River valley a plantation society of wealth, culture, and political
connections remarkable in western North Carolina. This group produced a
number of impressive late Federal and Greek Revival houses, one of which is

Magnolia Place.

John Henry Stevelie, builder of the older portion of Magnolia Placs,
was born in 1747 in Switzerland. About 1818 he moved to a plantation near
Morganton which he had purchased from Daniel Morgan and built a brick houss)
now the eastern section of the building. Stevelie, a merchant, served as

-a state .senator from 180l to 1806 and died in 1821.

Clarke Moulton Avery, builder of the impressive Gresk Revival section
of Magnolia Place, was the second child born to Isaac Thomas Avery, master
of Swan Ponds, another major Burke County plantation. Clark graduated from
the state university in 1839 and returned home to become a planter. In
18)1 he married Elizabeth Tilghman Walton, daughter of Thomas George Walton),
master of Creskside, the most ambitious plantation house in the county. InJ
18447 Walton sold his son-in-law 915 acres which included Stevelie's brick
house. (No deed record of Walton's obtaining the property survived the
1865 burning of courthouse records; local tradition has it that financial
reverses caused Stevelie to lose his plantation.) Avery and his wife soon
enlarged the house to more than twice its original size and named it
"Magnolia Place" because of the trees in the yard, most of them now gone.
Although he took an active part in local politics, Avery did not sesk
public office; however, he adopted a secessionist stand as the Civil War
drew near and was elected a delegate to a secassion convention to be held
on February 28, 1861l. That convention failed to receive enough support to

convens .

On April 17, 1861, the companies of the first regiment of North Carolina
troops volunteered and by May 16, had been formed into a regiment at Raleigh.
Company G, the Burke Rifles, was one of the ten companies of this regiment
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and Avery was made its commander. This company participated in Big Bethel,
the first real battle of the Civil War. Avery was commissioned colonel early
in 1862 and was captured at New Bern the same year. He was exchanged and
returned to active duty in the late fall of 1862. General Dorsey Pender is
reported to have remarked of Avery's .service: "If all the Colonels were

(where his brother Isaac E. Avery died), and was later mortally wounded on
May 6, 186l, and died six weeks later. In Clark's History of +the North

a true friend, and the knightliest of men."

Magnolia Place was bought from Elizabeth, Avery's ﬁidow, by their daughte
Martha Phifer, in 1873, and it remained in her family until the twentieth

century. i

Averys, our army would indeed be invincible." Avery was wounded at Gettysburg

Carolina Regiments, Avery is referred to as ". . . a brave and faithful office
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